
MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
BUSINESS MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, JUNE 26,2018 

Call to Order 

The Business Meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to order at 
7:00p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Howell and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Mr. Hosfelt. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
James E. Hosfelt, Jr. 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Vice President 
Commissioner 
President 

There are seven (7) Commissioners present at Roll Call. 
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Adoption of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda as presented was made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded 
by Mr. Howell; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Motion was made by Mr. Buckson; seconded by Mr. Pepper and carried by Roll 
Call vote seven (7) yeas approving the Business Meeting Minutes of June 12, 
2018. 

Consent Agenda 18-11 
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and/or non-controversial and 
will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Levy Court. There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which 
event the items shall be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately under New Business. 
• Items from the June 12, 2018 Committee Meetings: 

oNewAS400 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda 18-11 was made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded 
by Mr. Pepper; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Employee of the Month- July 2018 

Kent County Department Heads have selected Thomas P. Williams from the 
Department of Public Safety as the July 2018 Employee of the Month. 

Tom has worked for Kent County since July 2009 and serves as a Dispatcher II in 
the Emergency Communications Division. His primary duties include responding 
to numerous emergency and non-emergency calls, assessing the critical response 
required, and then dispatching the proper emergency service. 

Supervisors regularly praise him for his positive attitude and willingness to work 
whenever needed. Tom is EMD/EFD-Q certified and as such is one of four 
dispatchers responsible for listening to hundreds of 9-1-1 calls for quality 
assurance purposes. Whenever Tom identifies an issue with protocol compliance, 
he refers the matter to the dispatcher's supervisor for remediation. 

Tom is active on the mobile command center and recently served as host and tour 
guide of the technology laden vehicle at Safe Summer Day. In addition, 
recognizing the importance of having highly experienced dispatchers on-site at 
the Firefly Festival, Tom volunteered to backfill at the Dispatch Center to cover 
shifts during the event. 
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According to Director of Public Safety Chief Colin Faulkner, "Tom exemplifies 
the qualities of an outstanding dispatcher and employee. He has excellent 
customer service skills and that is effectively demonstrated on each and every 9-
1-1 call he handles. He is well deserving ofthis honor." 

Congratulations Tom on a job well done and Tom resides in Commissioner 
Howell's and Pepper's districts. 

The certificate reads: 

Kent County Levy Court 
July 2018 Employee of the Month 

Thomas P. Williams 

On this, the 26th day of June 2018, 
the Levy Court of 

Kent County, State of Delaware, does hereby recognize 
Thomas P. Williams 

Dispatcher II 
Department of Public Safety-Emergency Communications Division 
for his exceptional initiative, dedication, and conscientiousness in 

the delivery of services to the citizenry ofthe County. 

Tom joined the Commissioners and County Administrator at the front for 
presentation of the award. 

*Comments made by the Commissioners and County Administrator were 
inaudible due to microphone issue* 

Tom Williams: This is definitely an honor; I appreciate it greatly. I am humbled 
and just thank you so much for the recognition. It means a lot. 

Mr. Banta: We appreciate the job you do. I'm sure Mr. Faulkner has a couple of 
nice things to say. He'd lead you to believe he did this bio on you and actually he 
did. 

ChiefFaulkner: Tom, you've been with us about 10 years now. You've been 
outstanding every step of the way. You're a positive role model for all the 
dispatch center. This is our way of just letting you know that we notice the good 
work that you do. So again, congratulations on your selection. We appreciate it. 

Mission: Lifeline EMS Gold Award -American Heart Association Presentation 

Chief Faulkner introduced David Morris, Executive Director of the American 
Heart Association for the State of Delaware. 
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Mr. Morris: Thank you so much for having me this evening. At the American 
Heart Association our mission is to build a world free of cardiovascular disease 
and stroke. Perhaps the most important way that we're doing that is our frontline 
partners who are providing the best possible care for those in need. So that's why 
I'm pleased ... I'm actually elated to recognize the incredible care that the Kent 
County EMS team has been providing Delawareans here in Kent County. The 
Kent County EMS team is just one of 440 agencies across the United States and 
one of two here in Delaware who have received the 2017 American Heart 
Association Mission: Lifeline EMS Performance Achievement Award. Today 
we're honestly celebrating the lives that have been saved because of their hard 
work here and their dedication at the Kent County EMS and our hospital partners. 
This statistic is quite astounding and it's shocking really. The Center for Disease 
Control and Prevention has reported a 55% decrease in the age adjusted death rate 
from heart attacks right here in Kent County since 2007. Fifty-five percent of 
Kent County residents are surviving more because of their hard work and their 
following ofthe guidelines. So, the residents of Kent County should be very 
proud of the pre-hospital care that they receive from these professionals. On 
behalf of the staff of the American Heart Association and our more than 40 
million volunteers, congratulations to these guys on this very prestigious honor. 

Mr. Morris presented the award to Chief Faulkner and photos were taken to 
commemorate this occasion. 

INTRODUCTIONS 

Mr. Kujala advised the Commissioners there was one new employee to be 
introduced, Jacob Reece. This honor goes to Andrew Riggi, Assistant Director of 
Public Works. 

Mr. Riggi: Good evening Commissioners. It's my pleasure to introduce Jacob 
Reece as a new employee to our Public Works Department. He's filling our 
Utility Locator position, comes to us with over 20 years utility and wastewater 
experience. He's doing a great job. 

Mr. Reece: How are you doing? My name's Jacob Reece. I have 20 years trench 
(?) rehabilitation, pipeline rehab. I would just like to thank you for the 
opportunity to work for Levy Court. 

Mr. Banta: Welcome aboard, Jacob, glad to have you here. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are being conducted for the purpose of 
giving the citizens of the County the opportunity to present testimony on the 
application and ordinances that are before the Levy Court. 
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Everyone will have a chance to speak. All statements are to be made from the 
podium at the front of the room. For the record, please give your name and 
address. Copies of any written statements or exhibits used during the hearing 
should be presented to for identification and inclusion in the record. 

For each application before the Levy Court: 

1. The President of Levy Court will introduce the application; 

2. The Levy Court will then receive testimony from those in favor; 

3. Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 

4. After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the 
application will be closed and the Levy Court will then take what action it 
deems appropriate. 

Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony given at this 
meeting a recommendation submitted to the Levy Court by the Regional Planning 
Commission. I would ask that the recommendation be included, by reference, in 
the permanent record of the meeting established by the Clerk of the Peace. 

The Public Notice ofthe Hearing was published in the June 8, 2018 edition of the 
Delaware State News. 

PETITIONS FOR CONDITIONAL USE 

Mr. Howell: 
1. Application #: C-18-02; Applicant I Owner: Terri Knauer; Zoning 

District/Proposed Use: AR (Agricultural Residential) I Home Occupation 
for Therapeutic Animal Partners (Non Profit); Area & Location I ID#: 
5.6+ acres at the intersection of Crystal Rd. (Co. Rd. 189) and Hartly Rd. 
(Co. Rd. 49), east ofHartly I WD-00-063.00-31.01-000. 

Ms. Keifer: The first application before the Levy Court tonight is a Conditional 
Use for a Home Occupation, Therapeutic Animal Partners. The site is zoned 
Agricultural Residential, it is located outside the Growth Zone. It's just over 5 112 
acres at the intersection of Crystal Road and Hartly Road, east ofHartly. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony about this application at their June 
7th hearing and at their June 14th Business Meeting voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of the Conditional Use. I am happy to answer any questions 
you might have. 

Mr. Buckson: Mr. President, a question not necessarily a question for Ms. Keifer 
but possibly one for Mr. Pepper. I'm not asking us to weigh in on deed 
restrictions as we know there's a difference of opinion. That's fine. The 
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uniqueness of this application referenced in the deed restriction is that it is not 
exactly clear so I'm asking for a clarification from our attorney. Because in the 
deed restriction it precludes commercial operations related to farm animals but it 
does not eliminate them if it's not a commercial operation, meaning if you want to 
have a horse on your property or multiple horses, you can it just can't be for 
commercial purposes. Mr. Pepper, given the nonprofit nature of this application 
would you consider this to be in compliance with the deed restrictions? 

Mr. W. Pepper: Yes, Commissioner Buckson I would. The term commercial 
purposes usually implies a profit seeking behavior and, in fact, although it doesn't 
apply in this scenario our Zoning Code also has the same thing, and it applies to 
commercial use as an occupation *inaudible.* 

Mr. Buckson: Alright, thank you. That's all Mr. President. 

Public Hearing Open on Application C-18-02 

IN FAVOR 

Ms. Terri Knauer, 87 Crystal Road, Hartly, DE: I would just like to say I just 
moved up here from Tennessee last year and I ran this program for 1 0 years in 
Tennessee. I was not aware of the deed restrictions when I moved in and they 
weren't presented to me by the attorney or real estate agent so they were just 
presented. But I do feel like as the lawyer defmed that what we are going to be 
doing is within the deed restrictions. It's going to be a very small one or two day 
a week program where I bring adults and children with disabilities out to the farm 
to interact with the animals. Some of them may ride horses, some of them may do 
ground activities. We have programs geared toward the veterans, so we hope to 
be able to partner up with some of the veterans from Dover. We also do outreach. 
We've already been to one of the local schools. We take some of our smaller 
animals out into the community to interact with some of the participants out in the 
community. 

Mr. Banta: I will say that I read through the transcript with the RPC and the 
program you have is very rewarding and I would say that you should be 
complimented on the program that you run. Thank you for your time. 

Mr. Pepper: Currently what kind of animals do you have on the farm? 

Ms. Knauer: Did you say how many or what kind? 

Mr. Pepper. What kind? 

Ms. Knauer: I have horses; I have four goats, five hens, two rabbits, two cats. 
That's it. 
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Mr. Pepper: Thank you. 

Darrell Hughes, 16 California Parkway, Harrington, DE: First, I would like to 
say I don't know her whatsoever. But I am also a disabled veteran and I am also a 
father of two children that was autistic. I use the word was because May 20, 2013 
my children passed away in a house frre, they were 9 and 10. When I was living 
out in Indianapolis I had seen the benefits of ... when we had taken them to the 
zoo, to different farms and seeing how just touching animals increased their motor 
skills. Obviously like I said, they lived a very short life. We tried to live out here 
at one point in time but there wasn't a lot of autistic programs in the State of 
Delaware during those times. I don't know how many there are now, but I know 
back then there wasn't a lot. We ended up having to relocate back to Indianapolis 
and, like I said, seven years later, 2013 my children passed away. They never 
really ... had the chance to build their language skills, their motor skills and once 
again I believe this program would be a huge benefit to the children and the 
veterans here in Delaware. Thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you for your time and your testimony. Thank you. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing Closed on Application C-18-02 

Mr. Howell: I Move that we approve Application C_.18-02. Applicant/Owner is 
Terri Knauer; Zoning District proposed use is Agricultural Residential/Home 
Occupation for Therapeutic Animal Partners, Nonprofit. Area & Location/ill is 
5.6+ acres at the intersection of Crystal Road (County Road 189) and Hartly Road 
(County Road 49), east ofHartly/WD-00-063.00-31.01-000; seconded by 
Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, for reasons stated, RPC approval and Staff. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, for reasons stated as well as I continue to acknowledge the 
relevance and importance of deed restrictions. But when left to interpretation and 
then asking the lawyer for his opinion on commercial, I feel it's important to vote 
yes because I do not believe that the restrictions apply here. So, my vote is yes to 
be in favor of this. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on Staff recommendation and no public opposition. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, I'm in favor because there's no opposition and the fact that I 
really think this is a very, very good endeavor and I'm glad to have it. 
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Mr. Pepper: Yes, having grown up in Hartly I'm very familiar with the location. 
I think it will fit in well. The applicant stated she already has animals on the site 
and I don't this will be a burden upon the neighbors or the Town of Hartly, so I 
wish you luck and yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: It's certainly a very rewarding program and based on the 
recommendations of Staff, Regional Planning Commission and no negative 
comments and the public testimony, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application C-18-02 has been approved. 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Application #: C-18-03; Applicant I Owner: Whitney Durham I 

Eramack Properties, LLC; Zoning District I Proposed Use: RSl (Single 
Family Residential) I Home Day Care; Area & Location I ID#: 0.17+ 
acre on the northern side of Richard Bassett Road, approximately 235' 
west ofNathaniel Mitchell Drive and approximately 994' east of John 
Clark Road, further described as lot #31 of the Rodney Village 
subdivision, south of Dover I ED-00-085.12-01-26.00-000. 

Ms. Keifer: Thank you sir. The next application is a Conditional Use, 
Application C-18-03 for a Home Occupation/Home Daycare. The site is zoned 
RS 1; it is inside the Growth Zone Overlay. It is Lot 31 within the Rodney Village 
subdivision. The Regional Planning Commission took testimony on this 
application at their June 7th hearing and at their June 14th business meeting voted 
unanimously to recommend conditional approval. Two of the primary conditions 
included are expansion of the existing driveway to accommodate off-street 
parking as well as installation of a fence. So again this does come with a 
recommendation for approval; I'm happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Application C-18-03 

IN FAVOR 

Whitney Durham, 217 Richard Basset Road, Dover, DE, and Darrell Hughes, 
16 California Parkway, Harrington, DE 

Mr. Hughes: We agree with the conditions that you guys have set forth as far as 
the fence and the driveway. No objection. 

Mr. Pepper: I was just out there just prior to coming here today and I did see that 
there's a fence across the back and up by the sides but the fence isn't hooked to the 
house, on both sides ofthe house ... both ends of the house. I see here you are in 
agreement with putting a fence up, joining that fence to the ends of the house. 
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Have you had any estimates or anything like that? Did you bring your paperwork 
where you've had anybody out there to give you an estimate on putting a fence 
up or anything? 

Mr. Hughes: Not at the moment. 

Mr. Pepper: The driveway, have you had any estimates on that? 

Mr. Hughes: Not at the moment. 

Mr. Pepper: When do you plan on starting the business? Or have you already 
started the business? 

Mr. Hughes: No, we ... there's still a long process before she can start. Fire 
Marshall, Del-DOT still has to ... She has to actually go through those 
requirements before she can even think about starting the business. 

Mr. Pepper: One other question. I know from experience, I have a couple of 
rental properties myself and I see that the owner of your property has to agree to 
allow you to do this? 

Ms. Durham: Yes. 

Mr. Pepper: One of the issues that came up about ... in my case, was tenants asked 
if they could open a daycare there for small children and they've shown me that 
they have insurance, so on and so forth, and I checked with my insurance agent 
and asked them with me owning the house could they have a daycare there and 
still be covered by insurance and they told me absolutely not, as soon as they 
found out there's a daycare they would drop me, the insurance that I had on the 
house, so that's something you might want to check with your landlord. They 
may not be aware of that and I don't think that's a risk either one of you want to 
take, your landlord and/or you. 

Ms. Durham: It's additional insurance that we have to get. 

Mr. Pepper: Yeah, the problem is if something should happen to one ofthe 
children there at the property they're not only going to seek damages from you as 
the daycare owners they are going to, if it's some kind of problem with the house 
whatever they are going to go back to the homeowner as well. So, you really 
should check to see if your landlord has ... insurance would cover that. 

Mr. Hughes: Actually we would just have the landlord as the under-sign, as one 
ofthe undersigned ... I can't think of it offhand but she would be an additional 
insured. As far as ... I own Stick to Your Ribs BBQ down in Harrington as well, 
so that's what I had to do as far as my insurance. The property owner is an 
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under-sign or additional insured as far as my insurance as well, just in case 
something happens. 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Ms. Keifer, I know this is Commissioner Sweeney's territory but just 
a question I have. If a motion is made for approval and included there was 
procuring insurance, the fence that would be built and the driveway would meet 
our requirements then we could move forward with the project once those things 
have been accomplished, correct? 

Ms. Keifer: Certainly, what the Planning Commission had suggested was the 
fence and the driveway, the insurance is new. Are you suggesting that they 
provide us with the additional insurance documents? 

Mr. Banta: No, no. As long as it's covered, that's ... I just want to make sure 
that is covered. Mr. Pepper just brought that up because it's a homeowner 
situation, he doesn't own the property so there is some concern about that. We 
discussed at Leadership a little bit. 

Ms. Keifer: We did, but the question is, what role is the County playing and if the 
County is going to play a role then someone has to provide evidence to us. 
Perhaps Mr. Sweeney has some thoughts. 

Mr. Banta: He probably does, I just spoke out of tum. Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: I would refer to the County Attorney whether or not the County 
can force a homeowner to get insurance. 

Mr. W. Pepper: I would counsel against getting involved in matters between a 
landlord and a tenant. 

Mr. Sweeney: Good advice though. Just take it for what it is. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing Closed on Application C-18-03 

Mr. Sweeney: I Move to approve Application C-18-03, Home Occupation based 
on no public opposition, RPC recommendation of conditional approve, Staff 
recommendation of conditional approval with the following two conditions: The 
existing parking area shall be expanded with stone areas in accordance with Kent 
County Code 205-226 and 205-221 AND the rear yard shall be fully enclosed by 
filling in the two missing pieces of fence on either side of the home, with the 
understanding that failure to meet either of these conditions will result in 
revocation of the permit; seconded by Mr. Angel. 
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Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Sweeney. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, for the reasons stated. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, I just want to clarify one thing. I normally vote against 
daycares ifthere's not a fence surrounding the back ... at least the backyard. 
However, that is a condition of this application so it has to be fulfilled prior to 
them opening so, I'll vote yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, as per my motion. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, as per Mr. Sweeney's motion. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application C-18-03 has been approved. 

PETITION FOR CONDITIONAL USE REQUIRING 
SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

Mr. Angel: 
1. Application# I Name: CS-18-041 Dunkin Donuts- Maxwell St.; 

Applicant/Owner: Franchise Management Services, Inc. I Newwind 
Properties 2920, LLC; Zoning District I Proposed Use: BG (General 
Business) I Drive thru Coffee Shop; Area & Location I ID#: 0.57± acres 
on north comer of North DuPont Hwy (US Rt. 13) and Maxwell St., north 
ofDover I ED-00-057.02-01-08.00-000 

Ms. Keifer: Application CS-18-04 is a Conditional Use Site Plan for a Dunkin 
Donuts. The site is zoned BG General Business. The site itself is just over half 
an acre on the comer of Route 13 and Maxwell Street, just north of Dover. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony on this application at their June 
7th hearing and at their June 14th business meeting voted unanimously to 
recommend conditional approval. Among the conditions include a larger planting 
bed around the detached sign on the site, modified signage on the building, 
additional plantings around the dumpster enclosure, and revised buffering along 
the property line adjacent to the residential use which requires a waiver from 
County Code. But that is recommended by the Planning Commission largely as a 
result of request made by the adjacent property owner. So again, this comes with 
a recommendation for conditional approval; I'm happy to answer any questions 
you might have. 
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Public Hearing Open on Application CS-18-04 

IN FAVOR 

Brock Parker, Parker and Associates, 5258 Riverside Drive, Salisbury, MD: 
Thank you for having me. As I mentioned, I'm with Parker and Associates. 
We're helping the developers with the Land Planning services of the project. 
What we have here is, rather back in the good old days I guess it used to be a 
service station. Since then it has since transitioned into a Cash Point/Quick Loan 
style use. I believe the building now is vacant. Our current proposal is to go in 
and completely retro fit, put a brand new face on the building, make it turned into 
a Dunkin Donuts. In order to do so we obviously need to put a drive-thru in. So 
we show that around the backside of the building. It works quite well, that's to 
code; it provides a drive-thru window on the back, brings us right back to the 
egress. We have submitted to pretty much just about every municipality that's 
reviewing this, Del-DOT, the Conservation Service ... Basically everybody's 
down to just a few comments. So, from a municipality standpoint, engineering 
standpoint I believe the project is very well on its way. From a planning 
standpoint, Staff has brought forth a couple of comments with which we have 
complied with the revised site plan we see up here. A few of their comments 
were just some tweaks to the elevations of the building which we've complied 
with. They've asked for some more landscaping in, behind the sign, which we've 
provided. The only other real negative comments we had was at the last Planning 
Commission meeting, when the neighbor to ... above us showed up at the meeting 
and she had a couple of questions, couple of concerns with the project. One and 
her most strenuously stated objection was the fact that this was going to be a 24 
hour restaurant or 24 hour use and this is not going to be a 24 hour Dunkin 
Donuts. Most of the Dunkin Donuts on the shore close around 9 o'clock, some of 
them 10 o'clock. Very, very high use stores stay open untilll but this in no case 
will be a 24 hour store. We hope that we're busy enough to stay open untilll 
o'clock but typically they're closed around 9 o'clock. She had a couple of other 
concerns or questions with which we've kind of modified the site plan a little bit 
to make her happy. One of her comments was with regards to the dumpster. 
We've added a berm and some additional plantings around the dumpster. She 
was also concerned about being able to see the highway from her door as well. In 
the meeting we kind of threw out and it seemed like she accepted the fact that we 
we're going to put in some lower growth bushes up there where we're moving the 
mouse up there. So those are going to be the lower 4 foot high shrubs 
transitioning to the larger *inaudible* back to screen the building from the 
rest of the neighborhood. With that being said I believe we have a site plan that is 
approvable from a municipal and engineering standpoint. We have gotten 
comments back from Staff; we've heard comments from the public. I believe that 
we've modified site plan to be in compliance with all ofthose concerns. If you 
have any questions I would be more than happy to help you. 
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Mr. Angel: I spoke with Ms. McNatt. I've known her for quite a few years and 
she just lost her husband and she's by herself, so I understand the security portion 
and I thank you for the hedge. The question I have though is trash. When Mr. 
McNatt was alive they received a lot of trash through that area. Even though 
you're going to have some shrubs and trees there, because of her age I hope you'll 
reach out to her and be a good partner with her with any of the trash and leaves 
that blow onto her property. She's not going to be able to maintain that, it's 
almost all parking on that access. It's going to blow up against her house and 
stuff so, I just want to make that well aware of to you. If you can at least reach 
out and ask her. 

Mr. Parker: Duly noted. 

Mr. Angel: And then, I know you're not hooking to the municipalities so I'm 
concerned about the septic system. It's old; it's been there for many years. I 
know DNREC has to approve it and you're saying that it will be a cost issue if 
you have to hook on the municipality. Wouldn't it be ... well, once you find out 
if it's viable still. If it's not viable what are you going to do? 

Mr. Parker: Then we have little choice but to connect. But we believe that the 
septic system is viable in its current state. 

Mr. Angel: The one question I would have though is do you know where the tile 
fields are located for the septic system? 

Mr. Parker: Yes, it's located up on the ... above the drive-thru. We've located it 
and we've hugged the outer edge of it with the proposed drive-thru. So we're 
staying out of it, yes. 

Mr. Angel: Because that is an older tile field and it wasn't used very much when 
it was a gas station and a Title, but now you're going to have customers coming in 
and I'm concerned about the use of it. Because you can't pave over it; if you do 
it's going to cause an extra issue anyway. But I just want to bring that and make 
sure you're aware that I am concerned about that, so I'm hoping DNREC gives 
you a clean bill of health on this. 

Mr. Parker: Yes, I do as well. We're in that process now. And you'd be 
surprised at the volume of traffic that actually just goes through the drive-thru on 
these stores. The vast majority of them are just driving through, picking up their 
goods and continuing along their way. The actual sewage generation is probably 
the same as that community store although it's a little antiquated. Yes, we will 
move through the channels and get that formally approved by DNREC and if it's 
not by the off chance, then we'll consider our options there. We obviously have 
to flush our toilets. 
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Mr. Angel: I do know that the road, Maxwell Street needs to be repaved. I read 
that you're going to be doing that anyway, but that will make it easier for people 
coming in and off the highway and getting back on the highway. 

Mr. Parker: Yes, Del-DOT politely asked us to repave the whole road. 

Mr. Angel: Oh, politely? 

Mr. Parker: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: This one's a little off the beaten path. I'm curious. Have you been 
with this project from the beginning until now? 

Mr. Parker: Yes sir. 

Mr. Buckson: How long have you been in the process dealing with government 
regulations? Not specific to the County but just in general. 

Mr. Parker: Six months, maybe, yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Thanks. 

IN OPPOSITION -None 

Public Hearing Closed on Application CS-18-04 

Mr. Angel: At this time I make a Motion to approve, with conditional approval 
and the site layout they add a larger planting bed around the detached site near the 
front property line, remove all wall extensions with the sign .... on one side of the 
building and replace with a smaller sign on the fa9ade, add plantings around the 
dumpster enclosure, revise buffer along rear property line to replace 6 foot trees 
with smaller shrubs. The Planning Commission granted a waiver to enable this 
revision and I would hope they reach out to help Ms. McNatt with the trash and 
any debris. That's my motion based on that; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, as per my motion. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, per comments made. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the comments made. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, comments made. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, based on comments made and no opposition. 
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Mr. Sweeney: Yes, all reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application CS-18-04 has been approved. 

PETITIONS TO AMEND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP 
AND ZONING MAP 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Ordinance LC18-06, An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, Delaware 
pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205 
Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article XXVIII 
(changes and amendments) effective December 01, 2000, as amended. 
(Ref: Application #: CZ-18-03 Smith!Packett Med-Com, LLC; 
Applicant/Owner: Smith/Packett Med-Com, LLC I Woodbrook 
Development, LLC; Proposed Zoning District: RM (Multi-Family 
Residential); Area & Location/ID#: 3.0 ±acres located on the northern 
side of E. Lebanon Rd. (DE Rt. 10), across from the intersection with 
Sorghum Mill Road (Co. Rd. 26), approximately 1,600' south ofthe 
entrance to Planters Run subdivision (N. Planters Ln.), west of Dover I 
NM-00-086.00-0 1-31.00-000). 

Ms. Keifer: The next application is Ordinance LC 18-06. This is an application to 
modify the Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Plan Use Map. The site itself is 
currently zoned BN Neighborhood Commercial and the proposed zoning is RM 
Multi-Family Residential. The Comprehensive Plan designation would be high 
density residential. The site is three acres located on the northern side of Route 
10 across from the intersection with Sorghum Mill Road, just west of Dover. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony on this application at their June 
7th hearing and at their June 14th business meeting voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of the rezoning. I'm happy to answer any questions you 
might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Ordinance LC18-06 

IN FAVOR 

Mark Dunkle, Parkowski, Guerke and Swayze: Mr. President, members of Levy 
Court, I'm happy to be here on behalf of the applicant. Could you bring up the 
very first ... the color map that shows the two parcels? This is really a down 
zoning, Commissioners and it's really a split zone parcel. It's two parcels but it's 
really .. .it's already approved for apartments in the back and a fast-food and some 
retail or something in the front on Route 10. What we're proposing is a senior 
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living facility once, if we're fortunate enough to get the rezoning to utilize the 
whole seven acres. That will be senior living apartment, assisted living and 
memory care. The front portion is what subjects the rezoning tonight, in 
the white which is currently zoned BN, so it really is a down zoning to match the 
RM that's in the back, and then that allows us to come back under the Conditional 
Use RM Nursing Home to come before you with a Conditional Use Site Plan and 
that application has already been filed. To try to keep it short we agree with 
everything in the Staff report. They hit this right on the money but just to make a 
record we're in the growth zone, we're in Infrastructure Investment Level I, this 
would be considered infill and as I said down zoning. When I called up the 
representative from Smith/Packett and Will Holmes from Roanoke this is a very 
quiet neighbor and a low traffic generation neighbor because almost none of the 
folks drive. So, we think it is appropriate for amendment of the Comprehensive 
Plan. We did reach out early with Commissioner Sweeney and before we filed 
the rezoning we reached out to the Planters Run Homeowners Association to 
schedule a meeting so we could explain what was going on, because as we all 
know, like everybody, people are concerned about change or what's new or 
what's happening. So we had that meeting with Commissioner Sweeney's help to 
talk about the project. And I will say that most of the comments ... I don't think 
anyone was upset or concerned about the down zoning; most people had questions 
about, what are you going to build? And we talked about that and of course 
explained that this is the rezoning and what we're going to build is the 
Conditional Use Site Plan will come later. There are two questions that 
were raised at those informational meetings. One was, is there sewer? And the 
answer is yes, there is sewer. There's a stub connection already in Planters Run 
planned to be connected with, and we have ... we'll get...that's it, that's the 
graphic. So the red line up to the middle right is the existing sewer line in 
Planters Run and the green line is where the proposed connection would go, and 
that's already an existing, dedicated easement for this purpose. Because back in 
'04 or '05 this whole property was approved for, like I said development so that's 
already there and of course engineering departments going to approve the plans 
but the sewer will flow and it will work and we would ensure everybody that will 
happen. The second question is drainage because as you all know Planters Run is 
down in an old former *inaudible* pit and this property is pretty high. 
So ... and they have some drainage concerns right now, of course it's all open. So 
this first graphic just shows you, up in the upper right hand comer is drainage that 
flows basically down the hills, down into Planters Run and behind. With site 
development, and if you can go to the next slide, we actually change the direction 
of that flow. Seventy percent of the flow will come through the developed 
property and go into the collection system and be taken care of properly with the 
Stormwater Management. Actually, this is a case of development will make 
things better for the neighbors because of that management. So we wanted to 
give a graphic, and again of course we know all the plans are going to be 
reviewed by Conservation District and these things are going to be refined and 
when we come back on the Conditional Use Site Plan you know we're here for all 
those questions about the building. It's a rezoning, I know that, but I would like 



17 06/26/2018 

to ask Will Holmes from Smith/Packett Roanoke, who's the applicant to come 
here and just introduce himself and give you a little flavor of the project. Then 
we have Steve Gorski from Duffield, really he's here to answer any questions but 
I'm not going to go through a presentation. I see Mr. Carroll Wisely left so I 
think that was probably a good idea when lawyers start talking. So I'd like to 
bring up Mr. Holmes now and ask him a couple of questions and also introduce 
him first of all. 

Mr. Dunkle: Mr. Holmes if you could just tell Levy Court who you work for and 
where you're from. 

Will Holmes, Smith!Packett: I am Executive Vice President, Development and 
Construction for Smith!Packett a Senior Housing Development Company located 
in Roanoke, Virginia. We've been developing Senior Housing for 35 years. 

Mr. Dunkle: I need a little parlor trick for the record and Mr. Holmes you heard 
my presentation to Levy Court and do you agree with everything I represented in 
your behalf and do you adopt that as your testimony? 

Mr. Holmes: I do. 

Mr. Dunkle: Alright, thank you. If you could just tell them, the members of Levy 
Court what your company does, and I know you have two companies and what 
you'd like to bring to Kent County. And I'm going to jump in and just say that 
this is a 30 to 40 million construction project. 

Mr. Holmes: Smith!Packett as I said has been developing Senior Housing for 35 
years. We currently have 14 projects that are under construction in the Eastern 
part of the United States, 18 more in development of which this is one. This 
would be our first Senior Housing Community in the State of Delaware. We also 
have a sister company, Harmony Senior Services which is an operating company, 
so they would be the operator for this Senior Housing Community, so we're both 
the developer and the operator. The project we're proposing here is an 
independent living, assisted living and memory care all in one building. There are 
lots of amenities in the building for these residents. The average age of the 
independent living resident is 85; average age of the assisted living resident is 86 
to 87 and the memory care unfortunately is the 70s. Memory Care portion of the 
building, it's a secured area, lots of staff. They have their own dining area; they 
get three meals a day. They have a residential unit and there's a private courtyard 
for them that is secured. There's a living room, activities room; we have what we 
call Life Stations for them to help them recall from the past things that they used 
to do. Then we also have assisted in the building and those residents are in 
apartments that have a kitchenette which is a refrigerator, microwave and sink. 
Those residents get three meals a day in their waiter/waitress dining room and 
they also have amenities for their use; living room, dining room, physical therapy, 
there's a library for them, activities. Then we have the independent living 
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residences also. Those are full apartments for those residents. It has a full 
kitchen in there, a washer, dryer; it's like a regular apartment. They are one and 
two bedroom apartments. Those folks typically take one meal a day in their 
central dining room. We have ... there's a movie theater, there's beauty/barber, 
their own living room, library, there's private dining, billiards, card room, just lots 
of amenities. We also provide bus and van transportation service for the 
residents. You can imagine if folks are moving in independent they still want to 
have a car typically, and are holding on to a car, but there's a lot of concern from 
the kids about Mom and Dad still driving and once they get in and experience the 
van and bus transportation service then they tend to give up that car because the 
kids are worried about Mom and Dad driving. The assisted living residents 
typically do not have a car and the memory care residents do not have a car, so 
most of the traffic is visitation and staff that comes to this community. 

Mr. Dunkle: Well, just briefly, because it is part ofthe Comprehensive Plan, if 
you could just mention about employment, what you're expecting, employment 
and payroll. 

Mr. Holmes: Okay. We'll be hiring about 130 folks for this community. The 
full-time equivalent, once we are fully stabilized will be about 97 full-time 
equivalents. I think the salary ranges are $26,000 to $97,000; average is going to 
be around $50,000 in salaries. 

Mr. Dunkle: That's really all we have, I mean we're here for questions, to answer 
any questions you may have and obviously any questions from the public. Like I 
said, we think it's a down zoning, it will be a benefit to the community, it fits 
right in and it's in the right location and we would appreciate your positive 
support. 

Mr. Angel: I think Mr. Holmes needs to answer these for me. The number of 
seniors that are going to be placed in this facility, about how many would that be? 

Mr. Holmes: There would be 87 independent living residents, 69 assisted living 
residents and 38 memory care residents. 

Mr. Angel: Okay, is it going to be affordable cost? Because it seems like senior 
care's getting very expensive. 

Mr. Holmes: The ... this is a rental community. A lot of senior communities 
require a large up entry fee. We do not have an entry fee requirement. It's a 
rental, you pay as you go. It is not affordable to everyone but what you pay in 
rent pays for a lot of things so that you don't have a lot of other expenses. Your 
utilities are paid for except for your cable. We've got the transportation service, 
we've got all the activities going on there, we provide housekeeping services, 
there's 24 hour concierge, so there's no outside maintenance requirements for 
these folks and those types of things. 
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Mr. Angel: Well having gone through this twice already with family there is a 
waiting list too, so you should have a waiting list to help you get people in there. 
But I also know and people have told me that have moved here, Delaware's 
becoming the fastest growing senior State not just because of our low taxes but 
mainly because they can't afford the insurance anymore, the disaster insurance 
like Florida. They're moving to Delaware at an alarming rate because of that. At 
least that's what they're telling me, the ones I've talked to. I'm glad to see that 
this is taking place because .. .it's very well needed is what I'm trying to say. So 
thank you. 

Mr. Holmes: Thank you, that's consistent with our studies that brought us here to 
begin with which we determined that there is a need in this area, which is why we 
focused to be here. 

Mr. Sweeny: Thank you Mr. President. First of all, Mr. Dunkle, Mr. Holmes, 
Mr. Gorski I want to thank you guys for reaching out to the community, I think 
that was a very positive thing to do for Smith!Packett. I would ask the permission 
of the President to bring Andy Riggi our County Engineer to the podium for a 
question or two. 

Mr. Banta: Absolutely. 

Mr. Sweeney: Andy thanks for sticking around. Can you just describe, not only 
for the Levy Court Commissioners but for the audience, what happens with the 
engineering report with respect to any sewer flow that comes out of this facility. 

Mr. Riggi: With this application they'll have to do a Technical Feasibility Study 
to basically look at all the flows, how it affects every downstream component, 
upgrade pumps maybe increase pipe sizes; we'll be doing that as part of the site 
plan process. 

Mr. Sweeney: So anything that's required to upsize or to make bigger or increase 
the size a pump or a pipe will be on the applicant to fix to make sure that it 
doesn't negatively affect any of the surrounding developments or subdivisions? 

Mr. Riggi: Correct, correct. 

Mr. Sweeney: And that approval process is all part ofthe site ... 

Mr. Riggi: Plan approval. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right, so it ... nothing gets approved until you guys have looked at 
it first and made sure that their plan, their engineering plan meets those needs? 

Mr. Riggi: Yes. 
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Mr. Sweeney: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Pepper: This would be for the, I guess the applicant. Not being familiar with 
your facilities, typically what do your facilities look like? You know, the fa9ade, 
construction, things like that. 

Mr. Holmes: The exterior isn't intended to ... Well, there' not ... We don't have 
a prototype. It's not a set look. We adapt the exterior to the look of the area to be 
in keeping with the architecture for the area that we're in. But it's very important 
to us that it look residential, that it not look or feel institutional. We ... the 
building is, has balconies for the independent living residents, it has a lot of 
gables on it. We break up the building with lots of different materials and colors, 
you know with brick, cement siding board, different materials like that. So it 
looks inviting, people want to live there, they're excited that this will be their 
home. 

IN OPPOSITION 

***Prior to being sworn in Ms. Jackson stated she was not in opposition but she 
did have a question. 

Romella Jackson, 119 Hilltop Trail, Camden, DE: What is normally your 
demographic or economic background for the residents of your developments? 
What is normally the makeup or do you usually have a certain, I don't know ... I 
know it's rental property so it's based off of that. What are the rental rates? What 
do your normal rental rates look like for the actual community that you set up in? 

Mr. Holmes: So for people that live there, the independent living residences, the 
apartments probably going to start around $2,800 up to $3,800 a month. That 
includes the meal service and the utilities, except for cable, the van transportation, 
all that is part of the package. The assisted living rates are going start around 
$4,000 up to $5,500 and memory care which is the most service intensive is going 
to be around $5,500 up to ... into the $6,000s. 

Public Hearing Closed on Ordinance LC18-06 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Keifer before I make my motion, Mr. Dunkle referred to the 
down zoning of this property. Can you give us a quick rundown of the 
differences between the two zonings? 

Ms. Keifer: The very basic distinction is the existing zoning district, the 
Neighborhood Commercial allows for commercial uses which are generally 
thought to be more intensive, whereas this is going to a Residential Use, a 
relatively high density Residential Use but still far less intensity than a 
commercial. 
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Mr. Sweeney: So at this point I Move to approve Ordinance LC18-06 to amend 
the Comprehensive Plan Map from Neighborhood Commercial to High Density 
Residential and Zoning Map Amendment from BN (Neighborhood Business) to 
RM (Multi-Family Residential) based on the RPC recommendation for approval, 
Staff recommendation for approval, zoning change reduces the impact of any 
development that could happen there, it meets the conditions for approval and in 
accordance with the growth Levy Court has already approved for the Route 1 0 
corridor; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes as my comments and Commissioner Sweeney's 
recommendation, yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, for all comments considered. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the testimony given. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, for all reasons stated plus I like the idea of it being down zoned. 
Since it is there on that curve I like the idea of having less traffic in and out of any 
particular site, so I think it's fit well within the community, yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, as per my motion and the additional comments. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, based on the Staff recommendation, RPC recommendation, Mr. 
Sweeney's motion, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC18-06 has been approved. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS CLOSED 

OLD BUSINESS- None 

NEW BUSINESS 

Mr. Howell: 
1. Introduction of Resolution 3703, A Resolution to extend the Kent County 

Stormwater Maintenance District pursuant to Chapter 52, Title 9 of the 
Delaware Code and Section 90.4E (10), Chapter 187 ofthe Kent County 
Code- Paradise Ridge for Public Hearing on Tuesday, July 24, 2018 at 
7:00P.M. 
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Mr. Angel: 
1. Resolution 3705, A Resolution calling for a Public Hearing upon a 

Proposal to Dissolve select property from the Kent County Sewage 
Disposal District No. 1 (East Dover Area- New Harvest Baptist Church); 
seconded by Mr. Pepper; carried by Roll Call vote six (6) yeas; one (1) 
absent (Mr. Sweeney). 

2. Introduction of Resolution 3706, A Resolution upon a Proposal to 
Dissolve select property from Kent County Sewage Disposal District No. 
1 pursuant to Section 4624, Chapter 46, Title 9 of The Delaware Code, as 
amended, (East Dover Area- New Harvest Baptist Church) for Public 
Hearing on Tuesday, July 10,2018 at 7:00P.M. 

3. Introduction of Resolution 3699, A Resolution Establishing Fieldstone 
Village Garbage Collection District #181 for Public Hearing on Tuesday, 
July 10, 2018 at 7:00P.M. 

OTHER BUSINESS -None 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

Mr. Petit de Mange: I just wanted to remind the Commissioners and the public 
that after tonight's meeting we go onto our summer schedule and we will be 
meeting next on July 1Oth and that will be a combined meeting, Committee and 
Business. And again on July 24th and August 14th and August 21 5

\ that's our 
schedule. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Cathy Samardza, 1117 Judith Road, Hartly, DE: I will try to be brief by 
condensing some of this but without background you won't know what I'm 
complaining about so I will try. Some of you are aware of problems I've had with 
the neighbor that moved next door at 1131 because in May 2017 I sent a formal 
complaint about issues with Kent County Inspections and Enforcement. My 
neighbor began calling in nuisance complaints against my house. He didn't like 
the property line and since his bank survey put my privacy fence on my property 
he hired a surveyor to "give him a better line." He got that from True North 
Survey and I was given 30 days to take my fence down. Of course I retained an 
attorney and a surveyor. My surveyor surveyed five separate properties to ensure 
accuracy and indicated that not only was my fence on my property the property 
line was actually further over into the neighbor's. I know Kent County doesn't 
get involved in property line disputes but the property line dispute directly led to 
my concerns about Kent County Inspections and Enforcement because my 
neighbor used Kent County Inspections and Enforcement to harass me by proxy. 
I came home to find a poster that I had 12 inch weeds and grass in my yard. I 
went with photos to Kent County Inspections. Nobody knew what was going on 



23 06/26/2018 

so they sent somebody out, again to see what was going on. I referenced the ICC 
Property Maintenance Code that I had cultivated a naturalized area. I was told 
you didn't go by the ICC Property Maintenance Code and that I had to weed my 
naturalized garden area. Either the ICC Code shouldn't be referenced in the Kent 
County Ordinance or Kent County employees should be more familiar with the 
code. Since I checked before coming here today the ICC Property Maintenance 
Code is still referenced in the Kent County Code, so has anything been done to 
ensure the officers are aware of this? I then received a call from yet another 
inspections officer telling me that the case had been handed off to him even 
though I had been told it was closed out. That officer wanted me to immediately 
permit my sheds, which had been done before I got out of high school in 1972, the 
porch which my mother had insisted on shortly after the house was built; both 
done before Kent County Inspections and Enforcement were formed and I was 
told were grandfathered in, and my admittedly unpermitted fence which I had 
discussed with other people at Kent County before this. I don't know why the 
officer was so insistent, but I'm not easily intimidated as most of you know. This 
was eventually resolved without permitting the sheds or the porch. I was later 
informed that it's not Kent County policy to penalize property owners for a prior 
owner's failure to comply with Kent County Code, so even if the sheds hadn't 
been grandfathered in, I still don't know why he was pressuring me. The fence 
was eventually permitted once the property line dispute was solved. However, 
my neighbor was still calling in complaints even though Kent County had been 
informed that this was due to a property line dispute. So, has anything been done 
to ensure that Kent County can't be used in this manner again, and was the officer 
simply overzealous or was there a lack of communication and he was unaware of 
the Kent County Policy regarding homeowners ... previous homeowners violations 
and grandfathered structures? Fast forward, my neighbor brought in fencing 
materials. I checked to see if it was permitted. It was so he could put a fence on 
the property line. Now this surprised me because the Kent County Administrator 
had told me that you didn't suggest people put fences on property lines and at 
least four people have told me they were told not to. Now I was told that it was 
okay for him to put a fence on the property line. So I asked if I could see what he 
filed and I was told no because it was an open case. That's fine. I pulled out my 
survey and asked if somebody would compare the two because he applied a 
survey with his application. I asked if somebody compare the two and tell me if 
the property lines agreed. It seems he used the True North Survey from April 
2017 that showed that there was an encroachment by my fence on his property. 
Could somebody tell me why you would accept a survey showing a property line 
dispute and approve the permit for the fence on the line? And has Kent County 
changed its' policy about putting fences on the line, because I was told that it was 
perfectly okay for them to do that. The good news is his fencing contractor knew 
better, used my surveyor's property markers and offset the fence three inches onto 
his property. But his fence did not go where he told you it was going to go. From 
my perspective it appears that not only does Kent County not get involved in 
property disputes, no one cares if action by Kent County could lead to a property 
dispute. To recap my concerns and questions: Is anyone concerned that Kent 
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County staff is being used to harass by proxy? Is anyone making sure your 
officers are aware that the ICC Property Maintenance Code is referenced in your 
Kent County Code? Is anyone making sure your officers are aware of Kent 
County policies regarding code violations of previous homeowners or the issue of 
grandfathered structures? Is anyone concerned that the permitting process 
appears to be inconsistent in whether or not the fences should be on a property 
line? Is anyone concerned that a document showing a property line discrepancy is 
not questioned before approving the permit? And can someone tell me why 
adjoining property owners aren't even considered when someone wants to put a 
fence on a line, at least to make sure that everybody agrees on where that line is? 
I know that this is not a forum for dialog, but since I had brought some of these up 
before, but in email and never got a response I thought I would just make this a 
public statement and ask that sometime somebody give me answers to these 
questions. Thank you. 

Mr. Banta: We certainly appreciate your time. I was unaware personally of the 
situation that you referred to but I am certain the County Administrator will look 
into that tomorrow. It would have been good if we had known this earlier before 
the Director of Planning Services had left the room. Unfortunately she's gone, so 
I think it would be, not irresponsible but inappropriate for us to try and answer 
those questions at this time. 

Ms. Samardza: She was copied on my letter from May 17th but some things have 
happened since then, so. Thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you very much; appreciate that. 

Doug Beatty, 50 North Drapers Circle, Idyllic Mobile Home Community, 
Meadowbrook Acres: I was actually present at 1117 Judith Road when your 
inspector came out there and said the sheds were repurposed chicken coops. I 
kinda had a disagreement over that. The shed was built in the common style of 
sheds all over this area, including the one in the yard of the neighbor that was 
complaining. So I interviewed your inspector and I got to tell you, this guy 
should stick to honest work 'cause the life of crime ain't for him. The last time I 
saw somebody carpet dance like that was when I questioned Chris O'Donnell 
after he liquidated three of my lots into one lot with no hearing, no precedent, no 
written regulation and couldn't really tell me what his justification was doing that 
but everybody backed it up. So the only thing I have to say gentlemen is, that's 
twice, please don't make it a third time. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you, Doug. Appreciate your time in being here. Appreciate 
that. 

Susan Maynard, 826 Persimmon Tree Lane, David Aungst, 814 Persimmon 
Tree Lane 
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Ms. Maynard: We live next door to ... I don't know how many of you are aware 
of Afterfly. I'm not talking about Firefly, I'm talking about our neighbor is the 
unofficial Afterfly which he ... 

Mr. Aungst: 784. 

Ms. Maynard: At 784 Persimmon Tree Lane. And he advertises that he is the 
after Firefly entertainment, so he starts in the evening and runs till about 4:00a.m. 
in the morning. 

Mr. Aungst: Or longer. 

Ms. Maynard: Or longer. He starts usually on Wednesday night. Sometimes it 
goes through until Monday. And we're not complaining about Firefly, I think it's 
great for Dover to have this. I have no complaint. I've lived on my property for 
almost 30 years so I'm use to the NASCAR and Firefly, when Big Barrel was 
there. No complaints about any of that, I think it's great for our community. But 
when you have a neighbor who is playing music on, not his regular stereo system, 
I mean he's set up with a whole tent, entertainment system, he calls himself a 
concert venue and he has music playing like I said until 4 o'clock in the morning. 
I mean our houses vibrate from the music. On this past Firefly at 4 in the morning 
on Monday morning ... and I get up at 6 to go to work, I had to call the police 
again and ask them to please come out and make the music stop. And I hear that 
he's trying to get new permits and other ... so he can provide other ... ! don't know 
what he wants to do to be quite honest. But it's really gotten out of control. He's 
come over and threatened David's wife, she had to call the police. And I was told 
we should just call911 for this music and I come from the ... you don't call 911 
unless it's an emergency so I tried calling Troop 3, they told me they were aware 
of the situation, they have cars in the area but nothing happens, it doesn't stop. 
When I called this last ... l call every year. When I called this last time on Monday 
morning they did connect me to another phone line and they did send someone 
out and it did stop around 4:30 in the morning. And we do hear they're applying 
for new permits so that they can have the same permits as Firefly, and I don't 
know really what that entails, if they're planning on doing these more often or 
what these new permits entail, but we would ask that you consider, before 
approving these permits or giving these permits, that you check with the 
neighbors and it's really been a nuisance. I'm going to let David explain because 
his house is in between my house and Firefly and he has some other issues 
with ... not just the music. 

Mr. Aungst: Good evening. I just would like to say that the music is not only 
irritating but the language and this is kind of an adult party, there are kids around. 
She's got kids, we have kids and when the music's on it's really ... there's some 
language in there and there's all kinds of stuff. And there's been years' where it's 
gone on till 6 or 7 in the morning. Now I know Firefly goes on till maybe 1 
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o'clock maybe 1:30 in the morning, I ask when the music stops at Firefly, the 
party stops at the Afterfly. 

Ms. Maynard: And I do agree with that, the language one year, it was around 
3:15 in the morning and the music's playing really, really loud and you hear a DJ 
over top ... and I'm not going to say what he said but it just continued and it's 
ridiculous. I have ... right now my son-in-law's deployed so my daughter and 
grandchildren are staying with me and for Firefly we can tolerate it, I mean it's a 
little bit of a nuisance but I'm glad that they're here and we have no complaint 
about that. I'm the same way, I ask that the music stops when Firefly's music 
stops and that he doesn't get other permits so that he can do these parties and have 
these events at other times of the year. And I know that he has a website and, 
David and Suzanne who live next door to me, I've not even seen really their 
backyard, but he has a drone I guess that took video of his area and he has that on 
his website so I can see right up into Dave and Suzanne's porch and I really don't 
think he should be able to show the neighbor's private property ... 

Mr. Aungst: It's invasion of privacy. 

Ms. Maynard: ... on their website. 

Mr. Banta: We sincerely appreciate you being here and sharing those concerns. 
Commissioner Angel has been working diligently on your behalf ... 

Ms. Maynard: Yes. 

Mr. Banta: and I don't know the results of that. Mr. Angel? 

Mr. Angel: Thank you Mr. President. Yes, if you could stay a little afterwards, 
Mr. Hosfelt, who works for us and Firefly, would like to discuss this with you too, 
and I'd like to be there with him so we can have an open discussion. 

Ms. Maynard: Thank you. 

Mr. Aungst: That would be great. 

Mr. Banta: You all sort of stand by and these two gentlemen will meet with you 
afterwards. 

Ms. Maynard: Thank you so much, thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you for your time. 

Mr. Angel: Thank you for coming in. 

Mr. Banta: We understand your concern, seriously. 



27 06/26/2018 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS- None 

M-18-124 Motion was made to adjourn by Mr. Pepper; seconded by Mr. Howell; carried 
by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 8:28 p.m. 

renda Wootten 
Kent County Clerk of the Peace 


